MINUTES OF THE PARISH MEETING HELD ON MONDAY 17TH AUGUST 2020

HELD VIRTUALLY VIA ZOOM AT 6.30pm

Page 1079

Public Forum

- A) No members of the public were in attendance of the meeting.
- **B)** Cllr Linda Vijeh was in attendance of the meeting. Please see the attached report (**Appendix 1**) written by Cllr Linda Vijeh for SCC/SSDC Councillor Monthly Report. During the meeting Cllr Vijeh reported the following to the Council:
 - <u>COVID-19</u>
 - i. Numbers of cases have increased in Somerset and is expected to increase further in the next few weeks.
 - **ii.** People not wearing masks in areas where are required have been reported to the Police however, the Police have stated they do not have the powers to enforce mask-wearing and people should be refused entry.
 - <u>Local Government Review</u> will be advancing in the next couple of week. SSDC's Full Council Committee has voted against SSDC becoming part of a Unitary Council.
- **3163 PRESENT** Cllrs Ann Winter Chair, Ray Buckler, Philippa Woodman, Barry Mosley and Ann Richards.
- **3164 APOLOGIES** Cllr Julie Layzell, David Johnson and Richard Clifford.
- 3165 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST None.
- **3166 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING** Minutes of the meeting held in July having previously been circulated were approved as a true record and correct record of the meeting, subject to the amendment to the typo in the attendance and apologies section. Cllrs approved, seconded, and unanimously agreed.
- **3167 CO-OPTION OF NEW COUNCILLOR(S)** SSDC confirmed that no requests were received for election were received. No applications were received. The position remains vacant.
- 3168 CO-OPTION REGISTER OF NEW INTEREST AND ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE FORMS N/A see 3167 above.

3169 PLAYING FIELD UPDATE

- 1) BI-MONTHLY UPDATE Please refer to **Appendix 2** for an update on the playing field project.
 - Before the meeting, urgent repair works were required to the skate ramp. GB Sport & Leisure were appointed and carried out the necessary works. Payment authorised under Standing Order policy. Total amount payable - £87.45 + VAT.
- 2) PLAYING FIELD INSPECTION REPORT Please refer to Appendix 3.
 - Missing rivets on the skate ramp were not noted within the Audit.
- 3) PLAYING FIELD INSPECTION 2021 It was agreed to reappoint The Play Inspection Company for the 2021 audit.
- **3170 PRE-PLANNING PROPOSED BROADWAY HILL DEVELOPMENT** Following the on from the last meeting, this item was listed on the agenda for further discussions concerning the proposed development and public consultation event. Some of the concerns raised during the meeting were:
 - Concerns over the number of houses proposed
 - S106 Planning Obligations should include contributions towards play equipment and a section of land being donated to the parish council to be used as a play and extra parking area for the village hall
 - The proposal should include housing suitable for 1st-time buyers and accommodate for bungalows
 - Concerns over school capacity, parking issues at the school during drop-off and pick-up and building needs modernising.

- Welcome public consultation event in September 2020
- Cllr Winter spoke with the Village Hall and confirmed they are happy for the public consultation event to be held in the Village Hall as a result of the level of concern from residents
- The owners of the development site will have to pay hall hire fees and professional cleaning of the hall post-event
- It was suggested that there should be two full days of public consultation due to public interest and social distancing
- Display boards should be provided in and outside the building during the event
- Request leaflet is provided for distribution to residents of Horton before the event

Clerk to discuss public consultation dates/requirements with the agent.

Item to be listed on the September 2020 agenda.

3171 PLANNING APPLICATION(S)

1) 20/01985/FUL – Old Pottery Garage Shave Lane Horton – Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 9 No. dwellings (Use Class C3) and associated works.

Discussions were held. Some of the concerns raised during the meeting were:

- Shave Lane/Pottery Road junction cannot accommodate the extra traffic and there are no pavements from the development site to Pottery Road so residents are put at risk of being hit by moving vehicles.
- The proposed development at Nyworthy Farm is still under consideration which will also put extra pressure on the junction and will also increase the traffic volume. Both the Nyworthy Farm and Shave Lane application should be considered together.
- It was requested that street lighting is not installed and PD Rights for lighting to be removed. Should lighting be required, it was requested that 3ft lighting bollards are used only.
- Garage to Plot 8 to be on the other side of the dwelling. The dwelling to also be moved away from the boundary.
- Site is ideal for redevelopment subject to highway improvements and no external lighting.

3172 PARISH COUNCIL REGULATIONS AND POLICIES FOR APPROVAL AND ADOPTION

- 1) Co-Option Policy The Council unanimously voted to approve the policy.
- **3173** WALKING AND CYCLING MANIFESTO FOR SOMERSET Somerset Climate Action Network has recommended that the five principal authorities in Somerset 'Remove barriers and lead joint funding bids to plan and develop effective cycling and walking infrastructure in all Somerset towns and key rural locations'. We very much welcome recent steps by the County Council to give greater focus to walking and cycling and the government's recent announcements. Cllr Winter volunteered to read this manifesto and informed the Council that the ideas are very good and it will be interesting to see how it's implemented and supported.

3174 FINANCE

- A) Proposal To approve payment of the following cheques:
 - 1. M F Salmon Grass cutting No Invoice received. Item to be listed on the September 2020 agenda.
 - 2. St Peters Church Grant Cheque No. 000765 £400.00 Unanimously Approved. It was requested during the meeting that the Clerk inquires what the money goes towards.
 - 3. The Play Inspection Company Cheque No. 000764 £.00 Unanimously Approved.

3175 PARISH COUNCIL REGULATIONS AND POLICIES FOR APPROVAL AND ADOPTION

- A) **Co-Option Policy** Added to agenda in error Duplication of Minute No. 3172.
- **3176** WALKING AND CYCLING MANIFESTO FOR SOMERSET Added to agenda in error Duplication of Minute No. 3173.

3177 CLERKS REPORT AND CORRESPONDENCE

• Before the August meeting, the Clerk was notified of a Tree Preservation Order application submitted to SSDC. The Council commented as follows:

'The smaller tree (on the corner) is a good shape and has been pollarded before. It could be argued that the tree could cope with another cutting back.

The larger tree has a good shape and has not been pollarded before. An overhead cable runs through the canopy but this would be the responsibility of a utilities company to keep clear, if required, not the developers. The proposed reduction works to this tree would significantly change it and there is concern over its longer term health and contribution to the street scene should these works be carried out. As the tree is not diseased or dangerous, is such extensive reduction / invasive work really necessary? Low key pruning would be more acceptable given the proximity of the proposed new house.

We would want to ensure any work is done carefully by trained professionals, to British Standards and in the appropriate season.'

- Central Government has issued a White Paper titled ' Planning For The Future' which seeks to reform Planning.
- Somerset County Council has advised libraries are starting to re-open in phases.
- It was raised during the meeting that the brown highway signs on major A roads relating to a caravan site in Horton were still in place even though the park closed some time ago. Clerk to contact Highways England and request removal.

3178 ANY OTHER MATTERS RAISED WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIRMAN Issues raised:

- Speeding throughout the village in the early hours. Clerk to add the item to the next agenda.
- Noise issues from the Five Dials. Following COVID-19, tents have been erected outside of the pub to facilitate customers. Clerk to look into contacting SSDC Environmental Health over concerns.
- A Facebook page has been created for the village of Horton which residents post to regarding issued around the village. Clerk to monitor page and report any issues to the Council.

3179 DATE OF NEXT BI-MONTHLY MEETING: Monday 21st September 2020 at 6.30 pm

Page 1082

APPENDIX 1 - ILMINSTER DIVISION COUNTY/DISTRICT COUNCILLOR REPORT – JULY 2020

Whilst Covid-19 continues to linger, much of this month's formal meeting activity has focused on actions taken and plans to prevent further outbreaks.

SCC FULL COUNCIL

At this month's virtual meeting a range of questions were posed by members of the public and other interested parties, largely relating to the impact of Covid-19 and its impact on transport, and the future of local government. In addition to this, a number of reports relating to the various SCC committees were presented to members for noting.

FUTURE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT

After much debate, the One Somerset Business Case was approved at SCC full council (33 voting for; 14 against; 4 abstentions).

- the Leader of the Council was authorised to submit the Business Case to the Secretary of State, MHCLG, for a decision on the future of local government in Somerset
- the Leader of the Council was authorised to submit further supporting evidence arising from ongoing engagement, and future consultation; and any requests included in the pending invitation from the Secretary of State, MHCLG, supporting this case.
- It was agree to support the Leader of the Council continuing to seek consensus with the district and local councils across Somerset, towards the creation of a new single-tier unitary council for Somerset.

This decision has caused some consternation amongst the four Somerset district councils, who are still in the process of developing their alternative for consideration and have issued a public statement outlining their position.

POLICE

Locally there is a new member of the beat team, Steve Trace, who joined in April.

The police approach to dealing with the challenges raised by Covid-19 is - Engage, Explain, Encourage, and then Enforce. Several calls in relation to possible Covid-19 breaches have been received but overall during lockdown the crime rate was reduced. However, the beat team remained busy visiting schools and vulnerable people.

Since lockdown has been gradually lifted speeding has been a particular problem for local residents, and anti-social behaviour is now beginning to return to Ilminster Rec, with regular foot patrols to help tackle this. The police have requested that people call in at the time of ongoing incidents as it is difficult to follow up activities in hindsight.

In relation to the hospitality industry, a considerable amount of work has been carried out so that establishments knew what was required of them in relation to risk assessments etc. With regard to pavement licenses, there is an assumption that all establishments will be eligible for one, but this is dependent upon appropriate space without blocking pavements. So far, restaurants have been the only ones to take advantage of this.

INDEPENDENT ADVISORY GROUP

The new communication strategy 'Employer Brand 2020' has been launched to take into account the changing environment and to challenge perceptions about the role of a police officer, to initiate a cultural shift that will enable the service to recruit more widely and highlight its benefits.

COVID-19 OUTBREAK MANAGEMENT PLAN

This has now been produced and a clear action plan, primarily based on prevention is being put into place. The first meeting of the board, involving a range of partner organisations, has been set up held. Public health officers meet each morning and are producing a weekly Covid-19 dashboard.

A local testing strategy is being developed. Attached with this report are the public health slides presented at the meeting.

SCC now has the power to close particular premises and public spaces, in addition to preventing certain activities or events from taking place e.g. unlicensed music events.

SOMERSET HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

A presentation was received giving details of the joint Covid-19 response by SCC, CCG and the Police, and details were provided of actions taken relating to the declaration of a major incident.

The first phase was containment to protect capacity within the NHS to cope; this was achieved by 'pushing down' the curve of expected Covid-19 cases needing hospital admission. The second phase was the delay phase, involving shielding, lockdown, social distancing and assessing the success against the government's '5 tests'. Once a major incident was announced, this resulted in stepping down elective care, and doubling of intensive care facilities, in addition to increasing digital consultations (up from 5% of activity to 90% in primary care). The key risks at this stage were identified as the provision of PPE and availability of testing.

Covid-19 is not a short-term issue and cleaning and social distancing will reduce the capacity of primary care services by up to 30%.

SCC Adult Social Care has been working closely with the NHS and the Nightingale Unit in Yeovil (Hendford Lodge) has helped to free up capacity.

From the Police perspective, initially crime dropped by 30% but there was an increase in demand to enforce the lockdown regulations. There were 6,000 reported breaches, resulting in 118 Penalty Notices being issued and 15 arrests. Despite concern about an increase in domestic abuse as a result of lockdown, there has not been a significant change in Somerset.

Co-ordinated joint activity by District Authorities has built up community resilience and support for vulnerable people; delivery of food to those being Shielded, setting up food distribution hubs and establishing the Coronavirus Helpline, which has taken 3,485 calls, in addition to 1,293 call outs to identified vulnerable people. Requests for food are growing as more people become vulnerable due to recent changes in their financial status. There has been considerable work to support rough sleepers; in total 140 people were given temporary accommodation.

Support has also been given in relation to transport and economic recovery activities, including business grants, business rates reduction and PPE distribution.

Taking into account the lessons learned from dealing with the pandemic, priorities for the next phase include supressing the spread of COVID-19; to reduce the prevalence of COVID-19 being transmitted; to ensure health & social care capacity meets needs; to monitor and co-ordinate services to maximise and make best use of available capacity to meet the needs of the population; to mitigate the longer term impact of the pandemic on health, wellbeing and inequalities; to scale up staff testing and monitoring of available workforce; implement measures to ensure physical distancing, town centre, workplace arrangements, schools and nurseries.

The actions taken and the effectiveness of coordinated working by SCC has received national recognition, being nominated for an award, and SCC is in a strong position to tackle the next phase.

Rather than utilise the 'Digital by Default' approach of other local authorities, it is intended that there be the appropriate consideration to ensure that those who struggle with digital solutions are catered for.

The Public Health message remains • Keep Your Distance • Keep Washing Your Hands • Isolate for 7 days if you have symptoms (dry cough, fever or reduced taste sense of smell) • Do not go to work if you have symptoms.

SSDC FULL COUNCIL

The new Electric Vehicle (EV) charging points are now in operation in West Street Car Park. One local resident has raised concern over the suitability of the type selected and concern has also been raised in relation to those who may use the charging points but leave their vehicle beyond the required time, preventing others from using them. SSDC are considering a further 20+ locations for EV charging points, with Ilminster in the mix for receiving a second one in the future.

ILMINSTER/CREWKERNE SCHOOL REVIEW

Following the outcome of the recent judicial review, SCC will be reviewing the Futures for Somerset (FfS) report, responses to the consultation that was undertaken last summer, and other feedback received at that time. It is expected that early in September SCC will be able to offer clear options on the way forward for discussion and further consultation. There is recognition that retaining the current structure of schools is not an option. During the autumn term SCC will carry out an informal discussion/consultation period with head teachers and governing bodies of schools in the area, the Diocese, the Regional Schools Commissioner, The Bath and Wells MAT and the Bridgwater College Trust to help shape the final proposal, which will be presented to the SCC Cabinet meeting on the 21 Oct. There will then follow a formal consultation period, determined by the scale and complexity of the changes proposed and the specific processes that need to be followed. The aim is to have implemented any change to structure by the beginning of the academic year 2022/23 but this will be dependent on several factors.

SCHOOL RE-OPENING

Some OFSTED visits will take place in the autumn term. These will be of an advisory nature in view of the disruption caused by Coronavirus. Concern remains over school transport provision.

SEND

I have received communication from several parents of SEND children who are extremely concerned about the impact of the closure of Shapwick School on the future education of their children. I am actively pursuing this on their behalf.

LICENSING

The government's Business and Planning Bill makes two significant licensing changes to support business as lockdown measures are relaxed:

- the creation of a new (temporary) "pavement licence" to be issued by district councils, authorising the use of the public highway by pubs, cafes, bars and restaurants
- any premises authorised for on-sales of alcohol is deemed to also authorise off-sales.

Pavement licences – this is a new form of license permitting a licence holder to put removable furniture on part of the public highway for one of two purposes:

- to sell or serve food or drink from their premises
- for customers to consume food or drink from the licence holder's premises

The food or drink must be supplied from premises which are or are proposed to be used:

- as a public house, wine bar or other drinking establishment
- otherwise used for the sale of food or drink for consumption on or off the premises

Pavement licences can be used to offer *al fresco* service to customers who, were it not for social distancing requirements, would be consuming food and drink inside the premises.

Local authorities have been required to do a lot of work in preparation for applications in a short period of time, whilst also preparing to exercise enforcement powers.

Risks to public health and safety are highlighted as a ground for revoking a pavement licence. It is suggested that a standard condition requiring tables to be located "1m+" apart is required.

The bill also removes the requirement for planning permission or a street trading licence; anything which is authorised to be done under the terms of a pavement licence is deemed also to be authorised under the planning and street trading regimes. All pavement licences are granted for a minimum of three months and will automatically lapse on 30 Sept. 2021.

SSDC AREA WEST

At this month's meeting an update on the Stop Line Way (SLW) was received. This is the Sustrans Route 33 long distance coast-to-coast walking and cycling route, which in parts is suitable for wheelchairs and pushchairs. This section of the SLW runs through South Somerset from Ilminster to Chard across the flood plain of The River Isle alongside remains of the Chard Canal and past Chard Reservoir with views of the Blackdown Hills AONB. This part of the SLW route is well defined, enabling members of the community to access the countryside for leisure and provide a safe, green commuter route for residents to get to schools, work, local shops and services.

The intention is to enable the SLW to continue along the old Great Western Railway route and other designated routes where possible towards Devon.

SSDC DISTRICT EXECUTIVE MEETING 2ND JULY 2020

To date 810 emergency boxes have been delivered in response to Covid-19.

In supporting the homeless, 22 rough sleepers were settled into emergency and other accommodation. In addition to this, several other rough sleepers (6-7) chose not to take advantage of this for personal reasons.

The emergency recovery strategy was approved, and a redundancy task force has been set up to aid those affected by Covid-19.

There continues to be some concern in relation to the safety implications of re-opening play areas and leisure facilities.

SSDC PLANNING

As part of the working group looking at the reform of the planning department at SSDC I have been actively involved in the new format being considered to make the service more efficient. Concern has been raised over the possibility that planning decisions may be centralised, removing the important part that the current area structure plays. As far as I am aware this is not the intention, and there is recognition that SSDC's current area system is much valued. A recommendation has been made to investigate additional land allocations for Ilminster.

There have been significant changes to personnel in the planning department at SSDC this month, including the departure of a number of senior officers, which is causing concern. Of particular note, is the high level of inconsistency in relation to processes, which I am taking up with the officers concerned. In view of the situation it is anticipated that there will be some disruption.

This response was received over concerns raised relating to inconsistencies within the planning department 'Thank you for making contact and expressing your concerns. We can appreciate that changes to the team are not ideal, but in any environment there is turnover of staff. We will work hard to minimise the risk of lack of consistency in dealing with applications.'

Housing targets are still not being met, where there has been an overestimation of supply delivery; it is agreed that housing delivery needs to be accelerated. According to the local plan, 725 houses per annum are required but just 78% of approvals have actually delivered over the last five years, with no identifiable trend evident. Currently the annual completion rate is 52% of approvals.

Affordable housing completions remain below the aim of 35%.

A number of communities are exceeding their housing requirement, where there is a shortfall in Yeovil, Chard and Crewkerne. The lack of development in Yeovil can be explained by limited funding available for infrastructure and funding for community benefit. There are a limited number of companies in the area for house building and relatively high infrastructure costs.

DEVON & SOMERSET FIRE & RESCUE SERVICE

A pay increase of 2% has been offered, along with ongoing discussions in relation to changing working practices. 3,697 home safety visits have been carried out so far this year, double the number for 2019. This month, in my role as Vice Chair of the HR Committee I participated in the recruitment of three senior officers.

LIBRARIES

The Somerset Mobile Library Service is expected to be back on the road this month.

The Home Library Service delivered in partnership with the Royal Voluntary Service, has been delivering books to
customers who are unable to leave their homes.Full details of re-opening libraries, including hours of opening and services available, can be found on the Somerset
Libraries website - www.somersetlibraries.co.uk and via their social media pages - search for Somerset Libraries
UK on Facebook, @SomersetLib on Twitter and Somerset Libraries on Instagram.

Only limited services are available and unfortunately customers will not be able to browse shelves in the library. By providing staff with a few key details about what you are looking for, a hand-picked selection of books, and/or talking books, and/or DVDS will be available for collection at a time convenient for you from the library. No hire charges will apply. Using the request form, you can mention your favourite authors and other preferences.

Limited internet access is available, primarily for residents, who don't have internet access at home, but who need essential services. Computers will need to be pre-booked and can be used for up to an hour. Each computer and workstation will be sanitised between bookings and there will be 2 metre distancing between desks. Due to social distancing measures in place, staff will be able to provide limited support for customers.

CHARD MUSEUM

The museum is due to re-open on Aug. 1st with small groups allowed in one at a time. This will be managed by an online booking service, preferably accessed via the following link <u>https://www.chardmuseum.co.uk/visit</u> by emailing the museum at <u>info@chardmuseum.co.uk</u> or calling on 01460 65091.

ACTIVITIES/MEETINGS

	ES/MEETINGS
1/7	SSDC Area South
1/7	Horton quiz
1/7	Winsham PC
2/7	SSDC District Exec.
2/7	LGA conference session
2/7	DSFRA Resources Committee
2/7	Fiveways school governor meeting
3/7	SCC One Somerset workshop
3/7	SCC Coronavirus briefing
5/7	Horton service
6/7	Horton prayer
6/7	SW Assoc. of Leaders for Special Schools curriculum training
6/7	SWALSS school Covid governance
7/7	SSDC planning group workshop
7/7	Broadway PC
8/7	SSDC Area East
8/7	SW Museums fund raising workshop
8/7	Community Crisis recovery workshop
8/7	Horton quiz
8/7	Fairtrade meeting
9/7	SSDC Planning reform workshop
10/7	SCC Coronavirus briefing
12/7	Horton service
13/7	Horton prayer
13/7	Avon & Somerset Police Employer Brand briefing
13/7	Chad Museum trustee training
13/7	SSDC member briefing on One Somerset
13/7	Ashill PC
14/7	SSDC Scrutiny workshop – Future of Local Government
14/7	DSFRA Forum
14/7	SWALSS webinar – wellbeing - leading inclusive schools
15/7	Police Independent Advisory Group
15/7	SCC Scrutiny
15/7	SSDC Area West
15/7	Horton quiz
16/7	SCC Health & Wellbeing Board
16/7	SSDC District Exec.
16/7	DSFRA committee meeting
16/7	SSDC full council
17/7	SCC Coronavirus briefing
20/7	Horton PC
20/7	SSDC Regulation
21/7	DSFRA HR planning
21/7	SALC meeting
21/7	Ilminster TC
22/7	Horton quiz
23/7	SSDC planning working group
26/7	Horton service
26/7	Fund raising quiz
27/7	DSFRA HR committee
28/7	Broadway PC
29/7	SCC full council
29/7	SCC Regulation

	Page 1087
29/7	Horton quiz
30/7	SSDC planning working group
30/7	Ilminster division Zoom meeting
31/7	Somerset Covid-19 Engagement Board

APPENDIX 2 – PLAYING FIELD UPDATE – Awaiting Update

APPENDIX 3 – PLAYING FIELD AUDIT 2020

Please refer to document titled 'APPENDIX 3 - Playing Field Audit 2020'.